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§ Business Overview

Management Discussion and Analysis Report I

Economy and Outlook
Balaxi Ventures currently operates in Angola, the Caribbean and Central America.
Angola

Angolais Africa’s 2nd largest oil producer with a 2019 GDP per capita on PPP basis at USD 6654 and a population of
32mn people. The Government's reform momentum provides cautious optimism for improved business
environment of non-oil sectors. Oil prices have stabilized and could recover further, as the global economy recovers
from the Covid-19 pandemic shock. The currency seems to have stabilized in the last few months, which augurs well
for EXIM trade.

Caribbean Region

Dominican Republic (DR) is the most prosperous country in the Caribbean with a 2019 GDP per capita on PPP basis
at USD 18419 (having grown at 4.2% CAGR 2010-2019) and a population of 10.5mn people and is the largest
driver for demand in the region.

Central America

This region comprises of 7 countries which were once Spanish colonies: El Salvador, Costa Rica, Belize, Guatemala,
Honduras, Nicaragua and Panama. Guatemala is one of the most prosperous country in Central America with a
2019 GDP per capita on PPP basis at USD 8637 (having grown at 1.8% CAGR 2010-2019) and a population of
18mn people.

Industry structure and developments.
Angola -Pharma

All medicines sold in Angola have to be registered with the DNME, marketing authorizations have to be obtained
and products have to undergo laboratory testing to ensure compliance with stipulated norms and standards.
Barring products specified in the NLEM for which gross margins are capped, other medicines can be freely priced.
The Government's National Health Development Plan for 2012-2025 sets out to increase use of generics and
promotes generic substitution in pharmacies. No local manufacturing takes place currently as both the
manufacturing facilities of the only player in the country (PPP) remain non-operational and given the shortage in
the local market, there are obviously no pharma exports from Angola. Therefore, import trends into Angola are a
good indicator of domestic market size. Total pharmaceutical imports into Angola stood at USD 351mnin CY18, up
from USD 235mn in CY 16. Actual local currency growth in value terms and volume growth would have been a lot
more significant, as the local currency had depreciated sharply during the period.

Trends show a clear shift to affordable generics as CY 19 saw imports from Portugal falling 51% YOY in USD terms
and 43% fall in imports YOY from rest of Europe. Imports from India and China saw an increase in the same period,
growing to ~USD 87mninCY19.

According to the Angolan Pharmaceutical Society, the Ministry of Health DNME has authorized 219 importers and
distributors of pharmaceutical products and medical devices. Although the split is not available, bulk of this would
be pharma. Currently, your Company along with Shalina Healthcare and Prince Farma are key players in the
generics and branded generics segment.

Post the oil price crash in 2016, a lot of importer distributors exited their existing line of products which were
discretionary spending related and switched to pharmaceutical products, primarily because demand was relatively
inelastic and currency availability was better. This led to higher competition and undercutting, resulting in a
temporary impact on the organized players like Shalina, Prince and Balaxi. However, this increased competition is
now receding as some companies realized that pharma is not their cup of tea and number of players has once again
undergone some sort of rationalization.

Annual Report 2019-20 °
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Angola-FMCG

Like pharma, even in the FMCG sector, Angola has a high reliance on imports. Sweet Biscuits which are currently the
sole product of the company saw total import of USD 37.96mn in 2018, with Brazil being one of the large sources.
According to ResearchandMarkets.com, wholesale and retail of food in Angola contributes over 18% to GDP. The
food trade in Angola remains dominated by informal channels, with open-air markets, small traditional stores, and
street vendors accounting for 70-80% of the market. As Angola emerges from a recission, its focus has been on
‘value for money’ quality products. While there are some local manufacturers and a large number of importer
distributors, several product categories including rice, confectionaries, ready to cook foods etc. hold tremendous
potential for new entrants, who are willing to invest in branding initiatives.

As per BMI Research, spending in food and non-alcoholic beverages is expected to increase from USD 15bnin 2017
to USD Z21bn by 2021. Outside of food, there are various consumer items with robust demand, such as hand
sanitizers and other personal hygiene products (a permanent lifestyle change caused by the current pandemic)
which offer potential for newer entrants.

Angola - Builders’ Hardware

Builders’ Hardware like other segments, is also largely import dependent, although domestic manufacturers do
exist for some of the items. Retailers typically purchase products on cash and carry basis from wholesale depots
which offer a wide range of items under a single roof. Entire set of requirements by developers / contractors and
home owners are typically made available by these players. As China led investments boost the country’s
infrastructure spending, demand for builders’ hardware is expected to grow at a fine clip. Chinese exporters
dominate the market.

DR and Guatemala - Pharma

While both these countries have a sizeable amount of trade with member countries of the CAFTA-DR, local demand
is met partially by domestic production and partially by generic imports. DR and Guatemala were net importers to
the tune of USD 171mn and USD 392mn respectively in CY17. India is a key player in this market with CY19
imports of USD 42mn and USD 46mn in DR and Guatemala respectively. CY 18 imports from China stood at USD
17mnand USD 10mn for DR and Guatemala respectively. Caplin Point is a key player in these markets.

3. Balaxi’s Business Structure and model;

The company’s business comprises of three different verticals out of which Pharmaceutical formulations is the
fundamental driver of revenue, earnings and growth.

The company has a unique stock and sell model in three different geographies - Angola in Africa, and Dominican
Republic and Guatemala in Latin America. Our expertise lies in product registrations with the respective authorities
of these countries and the expansive on ground distribution networks in these geographies. We get OEM
manufacturing done for our products in WHO-GMP certified plants.

Our unique model keeps us asset light, with more than 90% of the company’s funds are in liquid assets or finished
goods. It also enables us to have a vast product portfolio across all therapeutic segments and dosage forms. Our
expertise lies in efficient and well-organized distribution strategies and also front-end sales. We capture most parts
of the value chain from importing, distributing, branding and wholesaling.

We have capitalized on our distribution strength and on ground presence in these geographies to foray into the
verticals of Builder's Hardware and FMCG.

4. Opportunities, Risks and Threats
The Company identifies the following key Opportunities going forward:
* Introduction of new Pharmaceutical Formulation in therapeutic segment in which the company is not present.

*  Deeper penetration for FMCG distribution in Angola by adopting a differentiated model involving deeper
engagement with modern trade

e Balaxi Ventures Limited
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Launching of new product categories in FMCG such as oral care, personal hygiene etc.

Branding initiatives to push sales of identified ‘power’ brands in the OTC segment

Growing the product basket in DR and Guatemala, as pending registrations are received over the coming quarters
and strategically filing of newer product registrations

Deeper engagement in Venezuela where the Company’s sales are currently based on third-party registrations; this
could include filing for registrations in the Company’s own name and / or setting up of its own distribution presence

Branding initiatives in the Guatemala market to drive sales and premiumization

Foray into other Central American markets such as Nicaragua, Honduras and El Salvador and into Central African
Republic, another identified market

The Company identifies the following key Risks going forward:

Angola, which is a key market for the Company has been emerging from a slowdown and a currency devaluation.
Presently there is a stable currency environment, a crash in oil prices could hurt purchasing power and dampen
consumer sentiment having an adverse impact on the non-pharmaceutical businesses of the Company.

Given issues of shortage of foreign currency to clear dues of importers in the past, there is a foreign currency
fluctuation risk that importers are exposed to. However, pharma is a priority sector and recent trends on the ground
show that post currency devaluations carried out last year, availability of foreign currency in general has
substantially improved.

The Company identifies the following key Threats going forward:

Given that the Company is a newer entrant in the Central American and Caribbean region, incumbents may launch a
price war. However, given the Angola experience and the wide range of products, the Company is confident of
building a dominant market presence over time.

FY20 Product-wise performance and Outlook

The Company is engaged in the business of International wholesale distribution of Pharmaceutical Formulations,
Builders” hardware and FMCG Products.

The Pharmaceuticals segment contributed 63% of the Company’s revenues at INR 2871 Lakhs. These were contract
manufactured at WHO-GMP approved manufacturing plants in India, in line with our asset light business model
that focuses on leveraging distribution expertise and front-end presence of the Group. We continuously strive to
meet market demands while maintaining strict standards for quality and timelines and adhering to our core value of
providing quality medicines at affordable prices.

The FMCG Segment contributed 32% of the revenues of the Company at INR 1452 Lakhs. Biscuits under the brand
‘YAP' were launched during the year and white labelled by an industry leading manufacturer in India.

The Builders’ hardware segment contributed 5% of the revenues of the Company at INR 240 Lakhs. White labelled
under the trade name Balaxi, these are supplied by reputed manufacturers in India.

Post FY20, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary in Dubai has commenced contract manufacturing of
pharmaceutical formulations at WHO GMP approved manufacturing plants in China and Portugal as well. Likewise,
it also commenced sourcing of a much wider range of Builders” hardware products from China. Accordingly, the
revenues from this activity should be substantially higher in FY21 as compared to FY20 and are not strictly
comparable, as sourcing was restricted to India in FY20.

Further, in June 2020, the Company has acquired the front-end distributors of the Group in DR and Guatemala,
along with its IP in terms of Trademarks and Registrations. This will further boost revenues for FY21, as the front-
end value-addition element shall also be captured in the consolidated performance of the Company.

In addition to the above, some of the new product launches in the FMCG business in Angola and pharmaceuticals
business in DR and Guatemala, will ensure an organic sales growth over FY20 levels.
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6. Internal control systems and their adequacy.
The Company has a proper and adequate internal control system to ensure that all assets are safeguarded and
protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and that all transactions are authorized, recorded and
reported correctly. The internal controls are supplemented by an extensive program of inspection of audit
committee, statutory audits, and review by management and documented policies, guidelines and procedures. The
internal control is designed to ensure that financial and other records are reliable for preparing financial statements
and for maintaining records of assets. The entire MIS is on a robust SAP platform.
7.  Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance.
Total revenues for FY20 stood at INR 4563 Lakhs in comparison with FY19 revenues of INR 1359 Lakhs. Profit
before tax (PBT) increased from INR 243 Lakhs in FY19 to INR 926 Lakhs in FY20. Similarly, Profit after tax (PAT)
increased from INR 196 Lakhs in FY19 to INR 649 Lakhs in FY20. FY20 was the first full year of operations under
the new Management and the entire India sourcing of the Group was carried out by the Company.
Particulars FY2019-20 FY2018-19
Debtors Turnover Ratio 2.49 2.48
Inventory Turnover Ratio Not Applicable Not Applicable
Interest Coverage Ratio Not Applicable Not Applicable
Current Ratio 3.75 2.23
Debit Equity Ratio Not Applicable Not Applicable
Operating Profit Margin 19% 18%
Net Profit Margin 14% 14%
Networth Details (in Lakhs) 2811.23 352.05
8. HumanResources

In a competitive economy, proper utilization of human resources plays a crucial role. It begins with best practices in
recruiting people and moves through learning and development, engagement, employee feedback and rewards and
recognition. The dedication and hard work of productive and dynamic goal-oriented team is the key factor to the
success of our Company. We believe that hiring the right personnel and proper retaining is the decisive factor for
success. The Company had 41 permanent employees in its rolls as on March 31, 2020. The Company’s wholly-
owned Dubai subsidiary had 13 employees on its rolls. Further, pursuant to the acquisition of the Distribution
Companies in DR and Guatemala with effect from 1st April 2020, 18 additional employees have joined the fold of
your Company.
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[ DIRECTOR'S REPORT

To the Members,

The Directors present the Annual Report of Balaxi Ventures Limited (the Company or BVL) along with the audited
standalone and consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2020. The consolidated

performance of the Company and its subsidiary has been referred to wherever required.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:
The summarized results of the Company are given below:
(INR in Lakhs)
Standalone Consolidated
Particulars FY-2020 FY-2019 FY-2020 FY-2019

Revenue 4563.24 1359.54 4563.24 1359.54
Other Income 281.14 80.88 281.14 80.88
Total Income 4844.38 1440.42 4844.38 1440.42
Operating expenditure 3917.07 1196.14 3956.25 1196.14
Profit before Depreciation, Finance Costs,
Exceptional items and Tax Expense (EBITDA) 927.31 244.28 888.13 244.29
Less: Depreciation 0.75 0.35 0.75 0.35
Less: Finance Costs - -
Profit /loss before Tax Expense (PBT) 926.56 243.93 887.38 243.93
Less: Tax Expense (Current & Deferred) 276.98 47.34 276.98 47.34
Profit After Tax (PAT) 649.58 196.59 610.40 196.59
Basic EPS R) 8.64 6.47 8.12 6.47
Diluted EPS R) 8.64 6.47 8.12 6.47

COMPANY PERFORMANCE:

During the year under review i.e. FY20, the Company recorded a Total revenue of INR 4563 Lakhs in comparison to the
FY19 revenue of INR 1359 Lakhs. Profit before tax (PBT) increased from INR 243 Lakhs in FY19 to INR 926 Lakhs in
FY20. Similarly, Profit after tax (PAT) increased from INR 196 Lakhs in FY 19 to INR 649 Lakhs in FY20.

DIVIDEND:

The Board has not recommended any dividend for the Financial Year 2019-20. The Board observed that, in view of the
various growth opportunities ahead which would entail substantial investments, both in working capital and intellectual
property, it would be prudent to reinvest the profits of the company in the working capital and to fund these requirements
of the company and its subsidiaries.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:
The Company does not propose to transfer any amounts to the General Reserve during the period under review.
CHANGES TO THE SHARE CAPITAL

In August 2019, the company made a preferential allotment of 69.6 Lakhs Equity Shares of INR 10 to the preferential
allottees at an issue price of INR 26 per equity shares aggregating to INR 1809.6 Lakhs, Consequently the Paid-up share
capital of the company has been accordingly increased from INR 304 Lakhs consisting of 30,40,000 Equity shares of INR
10 each to INR 1000 Lakhs consisting of 1,00,00,000 Equity shares of INR 10 each.

The Free Reserves and Surplus including securities Premium stood at INR 1811 Lakhs as on March 31, 2020 as against

INR 48 Lakhs asonMarch 31,2019
Annual Report 2019-20 e
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SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE

i

ii.

Balaxi Global DMCC, Dubai- Subsidiary Company

The Company had incorporated Balaxi Global DMCC (‘BGD’) in Dubai, United Arab Emirates (UAE) as a wholly owned
subsidiary on September 04, 2019 with a focus to carry out the International distribution business of the company.
The main objects of the subsidiary company are in line with the main objects of the parent company. The subsidiary
commenced its business operations only in February 2020 and hence couldn’t contribute anything in terms of
revenues for period ended on March 31, 2020. The Company has completed its Initial Capital Investment of USD 1.5
million in BGD on May 29, 2020 and on June 16, 2020, it has decided to make an additional investment of USD 3
million over a period of one year. On June 9, 2020, BGD acquired two distribution companies in Central America, one
in Guatemala and the other in Dominican Republic, as its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act, a statement containing the salient features of financial
statements of the Company’s subsidiaries in Form No. AOC-1 is attached as Annexure-  in this report.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the financial statements of the Company, consolidated
financial statements along with relevant documents are available on the website of the Company at
http://www.balaxiventures.in/investors_information

Associate Company/ Joint Venture

The Company has no Associate and Joint Venture Companies during the period under review.

CHANGE IN THE BUSINESS LINE:

There have been no changes in the nature of the business and operations of the Company during the financial year under
review.

BOARD ANDITS COMMITTEES

L

ii.

iii.

Composition of the Board of Directors;

The Board consists of one Executive Director and three Non-Executive Directors which includes one Woman Director
and the other two are Non-Executive Independent Directors. The Acting Chairman of the Board is an Executive
Director. All Directors, except the Independent Directors and the Managing Director, were liable to retire by rotation as
per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. During the year under review, none of the Directors of the Company
was a member of more than 10 specified Committees or Chairman of more than 5 such Committees in companies in
which he/she was a Director.

During the year under review there were no changes in the Board of Directors. The composition of the Board of
Directors is in compliance with the provisions of Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations and Section 149 of the Act.

Number of Board Meetings;

Regular meetings of the Board were held to discuss and decide on various business policies, strategies and other
businesses. Due to business exigencies, certain decisions were taken by Board through resolutions passed by
circulation from time to time. The Board met Five (5) times during the FY 2020 and the gap between the said meetings
did not exceed the limit of 120 days, as prescribed under the relevant regulations. Detailed information on the
meetings of the Board is included in the Report on Corporate Governance, which forms part of this Annual Report.

Committees of the Board

Pursuant to the requirement under the Act and the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors has constituted various
Committees of the Board such as Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee.

The composition and terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and number of meetings held during the year under review are given in the
Report on Corporate Governance forming part of this Annual Report.

e Balaxi Ventures Limited



iv.

Vi.

()N 5oaxs Repor |

The Company appointed Independent Directors who are renowned people having expertise/experience in their
respective field/profession. None of the Independent Directors are Promoters or related to Promoters. They do not
have any pecuniary relationship with the Company and further do not hold two percent or more of the total voting
power of the Company.

Independent Directors

The performance of the Independent Directors is subject to evaluation as per Section 149(8) of the Companies Act,
2013 and read with Schedule IV to the said Act. Pursuant to Rule 6(3) of The Companies (Appointment and
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, all Independent directors of the Company have registered in the
Independent Directors Data Bank, as required under rule 6(1) and 6(2) of The Companies (Appointment and
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended.

The Board is confident about their integrity, expertise and experience in the relevant functional areas. Requirements of
online proficiency self-assessment test in terms of Rule 6(4) of The Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of
Directors) Rules, 2014 will be complied within the prescribed timeline of one year, if the same is applicable to each of
them.

All Independent Directors maintained their limits of directorships as required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Company had issued a formal letter of appointment to all
Independent Directors and the terms and conditions of their appointment have been disclosed in the website of the
Company.

Meeting of Independent Directors

A meeting of the Independent directors without the presence of Non-Independent Directors and members of
Management was duly held on February 14, 2020 for evaluation of the performance of Board, acting chairman and
Non-Executive Directors. At this meeting, Independent Directors inter alia evaluated the performance of Non-
Independent Directors and Board of Directors as a whole, evaluated the performance of Chairperson of Board and
discussed aspects relating to the quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of information between the Company, its
Management and its Board.

Declaration by Independent Directors

All Independent Directors have confirmed of having complied with the criteria of independence as provided in 149(6)
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1) (b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 that they meet the criteria of independence laid down thereunder. Based on the declarations
submitted by the Independent Directors, the Board is of the opinion that they fulfil the conditions specified in the Act
and SEBI Listing Regulation and are independent of the management.

They also confirmed of having complied with Rule 6(1) and 6(2) of The Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of
Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, by registering themselves in the Independent Directors Data Bank pursuant to
Rule 6(3) of the said Rules.

vii. Familiarization Programmes of Independent Directors

All directors including Independent Directors are familiar with their roles, rights and responsibilities in the Company
at the time of appointment and also on a recurrent basis. The details of various programmes undertaken/arranged for
familiarizing the Independent Directors are disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this
Annual Report.

viii. Directors Retiring by Rotation

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. Minoshi Maheshwari retires at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting and being eligible, seeks re-appointment. The Board recommends her re-appointment. Sub-section (13) of
Section 149 of Companies Act 2013, provides that the provisions of retirement by rotation as defined in sub-sections
(6) of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 shall not apply to Independent Directors. Hence, none of the
Independent Directors will retire at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Further as stipulated in Sub-section (2) of
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Section 196 of Companies Act 2013 the Managing Director also cannot seek reappointment one year before the expiry
of his tenure.

Hence, Mrs. Minoshi Maheshwari shall retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and is eligible for
reappointment. Details of Director seeking reappointment as required under regulation 36 (3) of SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and Secretarial Standards (SS-2) in respect of
Appointment/ Re-appointment of Directors are enclosed along with explanatory statement to the Notice of Annual
General Meeting.

ix. Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the Listing Regulations, M/s. BVR & Associates
Practicing Company Secretaries LLP , Company Secretary in practice, Cochin, has certified that none of the directors
on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of
companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority and the certificate is enclosed as
Annexure:II

APPOINTMENT/ CHANGES IN KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

Mr. Ashish Maheshwari, Managing Director & CFO, and Mr. Nidhin Jose, Company Secretary are the Key Managerial
Personnel as on March 31, 2020 as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 201 3.

During the year under review, Mr. Nidhin Jose has resigned from the post of Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the company
on November 30, 2019 and Mr. Ashish Maheshwari, Managing Director was appointed as the Interim Chief Financial
Officer of the company on February 14, 2020 based on the recommendation from the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee. The board authorized Nomination and Remuneration Committee to find a suitable candidate for the office of
CFO.

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI Listing Regulation, Company has put in place criteria for
annual evaluation of performance of the Chairperson, the Managing Director, the Directors, the Board Level Committees
and the Board as a whole.

The Board evaluated the effectiveness of its functioning and that of Committees and of individual directors by seeking
their inputs on various aspects of Board/Committee Governance. Aspects covered in the evaluation included the
contribution to and monitoring of corporate governance practices, role played by the Board in decision making,
evaluating strategic proposals, discussing annual budgets, assessing adequacy of internal controls, review of risk
management procedures, participation in long-term strategic planning, fulfilment of Directors' obligations and fiduciary
responsibilities and active participation at Board and Committee meetings. Performance evaluation was made on the
basis of structured questionnaire considering the indicative criteria as prescribed by the Evaluation Policy of the
Company. The company has hosted its evaluation policy on the website of the company at www.balaxiventures.in

Board considered and discussed the inputs received from Independent Directors. Meeting of the Independent directors
without the presence of Non- Independent Directors and members of the Management was duly held for annual
evaluation on February 14, 2020.

INVESTOR EDUCATION PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)
i. Transfer of Un-claimed/Un-paid dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)

Dividend transferred to Unpaid Dividend Account which remained as unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years
from the date of such transfer, has to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund as per Section 124 (5)
of the Companies Act, 2013. In compliance with above, on November 05, 2019, the Company had transferred INR
94491/- to the above Fund, being the unclaimed dividend for the Financial Year 2011 —12.

il. Transfer of Equity shares to Investor Education Protection Fund Authority

In terms of the provisions of the Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education and
Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, (as amended) and other applicable
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rules, notifications and circulars, if any, every company is required to transfer the shares, in respect of which dividend
remains unpaid / unclaimed for a period of seven (7) consecutive years, to the Investor Education Protection Fund
(IEPF) Authority.

To comply with the above, the company had on 14/11/2019 transferred 68,142 Equity Shares, to Investor Education and
Protection Fund Authority through M/s. Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL), in respect of which dividend
was not claimed for consecutive 7 years from the date of transfer to unpaid dividend account of the Company for the
respective year(s). The details of the same has been hosted on the website of the company at
http://www.balaxiventures.in/investors_information

Details of Nodal Officer;

The details of the Nodal Officer appointed under the provisions of IEPF are given below and the same is disseminated in
the website of the company viz, http://www.balaxiventures.in/contact

Name of Company Secretary as Nodal Officer Mr. Nidhin Jose

Direct Phone No 04023555300

Email ID Secretarial@balaxiventures.in

Address Balaxi Ventures Limited
Plot No.409, MAPS Towers, 3rd Floor, Phase-III, Road
No.81, Jubilee hills, Hyderabad, Telangana -500096

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, it is hereby confirmed that:

i.  Inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures.

ii. The directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
atthe end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period.

iii. The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

iv. Thedirectors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

v. The directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

vi. The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

AUDIT RELATED MATTERS
i. StatutoryAuditors

The company appointed of M/s. P Murali & Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 007257S) Hyderabad as
statutory auditors of Company to hold office for one term of 5 years commencing from conclusion of 75th Annual General
Meeting upto conclusion of 80th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Auditors’” Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 does not contain any qualifications, reservation or
adverse remark. The notes to accounts forming part of financial statements are self-explanatory and need no further
clarification. The Auditors Report is enclosed with the financial statements in the annual report.
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ii. Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 inter-alia requires every listed company to annex with its Board’s
report, a Secretarial Audit Report given by a Practicing Company Secretary, in the prescribed form. Board of Directors
appointed BVR & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries LLP as Secretarial Auditor to conduct Secretarial Audit of
the Company for Financial Year 2019-20 and their report is annexed to this Board report as Annexure III. There are no
qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Practicing Company Secretaries in the Secretarial Audit
Report for the period under review.

iii. Internal Auditors;

Pursuant to Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule no. 13 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the
company had appointed M/s PCN & Associates, Chartered Accountants - Hyderabad as the internal auditor of the
Company for the Financial Year 2019-20 at its meeting held on May 05, 2018.

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS/EMPLOYEES REMUNERATION

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act, read with Rule
5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016 are available
with the Company. In terms of provisions of Section 136(1) of the Act, this report is being sent to the members without this
annexure and the details are open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company from 11.00 A.M. to 1.00 P.M. for
a period of 21 days upto the date of ensuing AGM. Any member interested in obtaining such particulars may write to the
Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act and Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the names and particulars of remuneration of employees are
available with the Company. In terms of provisions of Section 136(1) of the Act, this report is being sent to the members
without this annexure and the details are open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company from 11.00 A.M. to
1.00 P.M. for a period of 21 days upto the date of ensuing AGM. Any member interested in obtaining such particulars may
write to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company.

FRAUD REPORTING:

During the year under review, neither the Statutory Auditors nor the Secretarial Auditors or the Internal Auditors has
reported to the Audit Committee, under Section 143(12) of the Act, any instances of fraud committed against the
Company by its officers or employees.

NOMINATION POLICY

Nomination and Remuneration Committee works with Board to determine the appropriate characteristics, skills and
experience for the Board as a whole and its individual members with an objective of having a Board with diverse
backgrounds and experience in business, knowledge, capital market and education. Characteristics expected from all
Directors include independence, integrity, high personal and professional ethics, sound business judgment, ability to
participate constructively in deliberations and willingness to exercise authority in a collective manner. Policy on
appointment and removal of Directors is annexed to this report as Annexure-1V.

Based on the recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Board approved the Remuneration Policy
for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and all other employees of Company. As part of the policy, Company
strives to ensure that:

a) The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors of the
quality required to run the Company successfully;

b) Relationship between remuneration and performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

¢) Remuneration to Directors, KMP and senior management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short and long-term performance objectives, appropriate to the working of Company and its goals. The
Remuneration Policy for Directors, KMP and other employees is annexed to this report as Annexure V.
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VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy for Vigil Mechanism for Directors and Employees to report to the
Management instances of unethical behavior, fraud or violation of Company’s code of conduct. The mechanism provides
for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and Directors who use such mechanism and makes provision
for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee. None of the person has been denied access to the Audit
Committee.

During the year under review, the Company has not received any instances of genuine concerns from Directors or
employees under this mechanism. The company also hosted the Whistle Blower Policy in line with the provisions of the
Companies Act and the Listing Regulations on the website of the Company at http://www.balaxiventures.in/
corporate_governance

POLICY ON MATERIAL SUBSIDIARIES

The Board of Directors of the Company has, in accordance with the SEBI Listing Regulations, approved and adopted a
Policy for determining material subsidiaries and the said policy as uploaded on the website of the Company can be
accessed at the weblink: http://www.balaxiventures.in/corporate_governance

In terms of the criteria laid down in the Company’s Policy on Material Subsidiaries and the SEBI Listing Regulations, the
Company does not have any Material Subsidiary as on date March 31, 2020.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Under Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, every company having net worth of rupees five hundred crores or more, or
turnover of rupees one thousand crores or more or a net profit of rupees five crores or more during the immediate
preceding financial year shall constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board consisting of three or
more directors, out of which at least one director shall be an independent director. Hence the company was not meeting
threshold limit under section 135 of the Companies Act, CSR provisions were not applicable to the company during the
period under review.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has developed and implemented risk management framework detailing risks associated with its business,
process of identification of risks, monitoring and mitigation of these risks. The Management of the Company with the help
of inhouse team and internal auditor, identifies the risks. Risks are generally associated with the areas of new products,
information security, digitization etc. The Company had taken adequate checks and balances to eliminate and minimize
the risk through the robust implementation of ERP(SAP) system.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Board has adopted policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the Company's policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures. The Company has
Internal Control Systems commensurate with the nature of its business, size and areas of operations. Audit Committee
reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control system and monitors the implementation of audit
recommendations

The Company has implemented adequate procedures and internal control systems which provide reasonable assurance
regarding reliability of financial reporting and preparation of financial statements. The Company is operating in a fully
computerized environment and maintains all its records in ERP (SAP) System and the workflow, approvals are completely
routed through ERP(SAP).

The Company has appointed Internal Auditors to examine the internal controls and verify whether the workflow of the
organization is in accordance with the approved policies of the Company. Internal Financial Controls were reviewed by
the Audit Committee. Further, the Board also reviews effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system and the
Statutory Auditors of the Company also carried out audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting of the
Company as on March 31, 2020 and issued their report which forms part of the Independent Auditor’s report.
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DEPOSITS
During period under review, your Company has not accepted any deposits under the Companies Act, 2013.
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

The Company was not having any guarantees during the period under review. The company has given loan to the
employees as a part of company policy of which details are mentioned in note no 9 to the financials. During the year under
the review, the company has not given loan, provided any guarantee or made any investment falling under the provisions
of Section 186 of the Companies Act 2013.

However, the company has made investments in its Wholly Owned Subsidiary, Balaxi Global DMCC, Dubai under section
186(3) of which details are mentioned in note no 4 & 9 to the financials.

Any Revision Made in Financial Statements/ Board’s Report

The Company has not revised the Financial Statements or Board's Report in respect of any of the three preceding financial
years.

CODE OF CONDUCT

In compliance with Regulation 26(3) of the Listing Regulations and the Act, the Company has framed and adopted Code of
Conduct (“the Code”) for Directors and Senior Management. The Code provides guidance on ethical conduct of business
and compliance of law. The Code is available on the Company’'s website http://www.balaxiventures.in/
corporate_governance

All Members of the Board and Senior Management personnel have affirmed the compliance with the Code as on March 31,
2020. A declaration to this effect, signed by the Managing Director in terms of the Listing Regulations is given in the
Report of Corporate Governance forming part of this Annual Report as Annexure-VL.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

The details forming part of the extract of Annual Return in Form MGT 9 as per provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and
rules thereto is annexed to this report as Annexure VIL.

POSTAL BALLOT:

During period under review, pursuant to Section 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory amendment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof made thereunder),
your Company has not passed any resolutions through postal ballot.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report comprising of all information as prescribed under Schedule V of SEBI
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations 2015 is annexed to this report under Business Overview
section of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions which were entered during the financial year were in the ordinary course of business and on
an arm’s length basis. There were no materially significant related party transactions entered by the Company with the
promoters, directors, key managerial personnel or other persons which may have a potential conflict with the interests of
the Company. A statement of all related party transactions is presented before the Audit Committee on quarterly/annual
basis, specifying the nature, value and terms and conditions of transactions. Since all the Related Party Transactions that
were entered into during the financial year were on an arm'’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of business, no
details are required to be provided in Form AOC-2 prescribed under clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act
and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Regulations, the Company has also adopted the Policy on Materiality
while dealing with Related Party Transactions and the same has been placed on the website of the Company at
http://www.balaxiventures.in/corporate_governance
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The Corporate Governance norms under SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 shall be
applicable to the company, if the paid-up capital of the Company is more than INR. 10 Crores and Net worth of the
Company is more than INR. 25 Crores. The Company falls under the said criteria on January 01, 2020 and hence the
company is having a time period of Six months to comply with Corporate Governance norms under SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of Corporate Governance and adhere to the Corporate
Governance requirements. The Report on Corporate Governance as required under Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule
V of the Listing Regulations forms part of this Annual Report. The Practicing Company Secretary’s Certificate on
compliance with Corporate Governance norms is also attached to this Report as Annexure VIIL

Further as required under Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations, a certificate from the Managing Director and CFO is
being annexed with this Report as Annexure IX.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The Company is not required to make and maintain such accounts and cost records as specified by the Central
Government under sub—section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

STRICTURES AND PENALTIES

There have been no instances of non-compliance by the Company on any matters related to the capital markets, nor have
any penalty/strictures been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchange or SEBI or any other statutory authority on
such matters during the last three years. Your Company has complied with the mandatory requirements of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

There have been no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and Company’s operations.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Particulars as prescribed under Sub-section (3) (m) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding energy conservation and technology absorption is not applicable to your
Company. But however the company is taking adequate steps to ensure the conservation of energy and adopting the best
technology in this regard according to the size of operations.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the Foreign Exchange outgo during the year
in terms of actual outflows;

® in Lakhs)
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Foreign Exchange Earnings 4563 1359
Foreign Exchange Outgo 98 Nil

DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at workplace and adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition
and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules thereunder. Your Company has not received any Complaint
under this policy during the period under review.
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COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with the required Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India.

LISTING STATUS

The Company’s shares are listed at National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE). The Equity Shares of the company is
currently trading at NSE under Stock Code BALAXI. The Company has paid the listing fees to NSE and the custodian
charges to National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for the
financial year ended March 31, 2020

CODE OF PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES FOR FAIR DISCLOSURE OF UNPUBLISHED PRICE SENSITIVE
INFORMATION;

The Board has formulated code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive
Information (“Fair Disclosure Code”) for fair disclosure of events and occurrences that could impact price discovery in the
market for the Company’s securities and to maintain the uniformity, transparency and fairness in dealings with all
stakeholders and ensure adherence to applicable laws and regulations. The copy of the same is available on the website of
the Company at http://www.balaxiventures.in/corporate_governance

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Board has formulated code of conduct for regulating, monitoring and reporting of trading of shares by Insiders. This
code lays down guidelines, procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made by the insiders while dealing with shares
of the Company and cautioning them on consequences of non-compliances. The copy of the same is available on the
website of the Company at http://www.balaxiventures.in/corporate_governance

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS;

Balaxi Global DMCC, Dubai, ("BGD"), Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the company, has acquired a Pharmaceutical
Distribution Company, Balaxi Healthcare Dominica SRL (“BHD”) in Dominican Republic in Central America. BHD is
engaged in the distribution of Balaxi's Pharmaceutical Formulation Products in Dominican Republic. BHD has 136
Pharmaceutical Formulation Products registered with the Ministry of Health (MOH), Dominican Republic. BHD has also
applied for registration of further 48 products with the MOH of Dominican Republic, the approvals for which are expected
in the coming months. All these products are supplied by Balaxi Ventures Limited/Balaxi Global DMCC, Dubai.

Balaxi Global DMCC, Dubai has also acquired another Pharmaceutical Distribution Company, Balaxi Healthcare
Guatemala S.A. ("‘BHG") in Republic of Guatemala in Central America. BHG is engaged in the distribution of Balaxi's
Pharmaceutical Formulation Products in Guatemala. BHG has 71 Pharmaceutical Formulation Products registered with
the Ministry of Health (MOH), Guatemala. Application for registration of further 35 products are pending for approval
with the MOH of Guatemala. It is also in the process of making applications for registration for 26 more products, the
approvals for which are expected in the coming months. All these products are supplied by Balaxi Ventures Limited/Balaxi
Global DMCC, Dubai.

There were no other material changes and commitment affecting the financial position of the company which have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial statements related and the date of
this report.
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For and on behalf of Board,
Balaxi Ventures Limited

Ashish Maheshwari Minoshi Maheshwari
Place: Hyderabad Managing Director Director
Date: 17.08.2020 DIN: 01575984 DIN: 01575975
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ANNEXURE - 1

FORM AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read

with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENT OF SUBSIDIARIES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES OR JOINT VENTURES

PART "A": SUBSIDIARY

Name of the subsidiary

Balaxi Global DMCC, Dubai

The date since when subsidiary was acquired September 04, 2019

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned February 13, 2020 - March 31, 2020 (FY 2019-20)

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the
last date of the relevant Financial year in the case USD, 75.385
of foreign subsidiaries

SL.NO Particulars Amount (INR in Thousand)
1 Share Capital 978
2 Reserves & Surplus (3664)
3 Total Assets (9547)
4 Total Liabilities (15675)
5 Investments -
6 Turnover -
7 Profit before taxation (3918)
8 Provision for taxation -
9 Profit after taxation (3918)
Other Information
Proposed Dividend NIL
Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100%
Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations NA
Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year NIL
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[ ANNEXURE - II [

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members of,

Balaxi Ventures Limited,
Hyderabad,

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Balaxi
Ventures Limited having Corporate Identity Number: L25191TG1942PLC121598 and having registered office at Plot
No.409,H.No. 8-2-293, Maps Towers 3rd Floor, Phase-III, Road No.81,Jubilee Hills Hyderabad, 500096. (hereinafter
referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in
accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the
Company & its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company for the financial year
ending on March 31, 2020, have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Director(s) of
Company by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory
Authority.

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our test check basis
verification.

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

FOR BVR & ASSOCIATES COMPANY SECRATARIES LLP

Place: Cochin

Date: 06.08.2020 CS Yogindunath S

Designated Partner

UDIN: FO07865B000554928
FCS No. F7865

CPNo.9137
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[ ANNEXURE - I1I [

Form No: MR 3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2020
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

TheMembers,

BALAXIVENTURES LIMITED

PlotNo.409, H.No. 8-2-293, Maps Towers
3rd Floor, Phase-III, Road No.81, Jubilee Hills
Hyderabad Telangana - 500096

We, BVR & Associates Company Secretaries LLP have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Balaxi Ventures Limited (CIN :
L25191TG1942PLC121598).Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. Based on our verification
of Balaxi Ventures Limited books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on 31.03.2020 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject Lo the
reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records

maintained by Balaxi Ventures Limited for the financial year ended on 31.03.2020 according to the provisions of:
[.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

iil.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;

ili. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-law framed thereunder;

iv. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
('SEBIAct) :-
(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 201 1;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993;
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 and
(f) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
v.  The Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952and the rules made thereunder;

vi. Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948 and the rules made thereunder;
vii. Drugsand Cosmetics Act, 1940 and the Regulations framed thereunder;
viii. Foreign Trade Policy;
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ix. RBI-Master Direction -Export of Goods and Services;
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:-

(i) Secretarial Standards (SS-1 and SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with National Stock Exchange(s).
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:
We further report that The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the
Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were duly sent and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting. Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured and recorded as part of
the minutes.
The Company filed following E-form with MCA for the Financial Year under Review:-

SINo Date of filing SRN Form
1 08.04.2019 H50150515 Form IEPF 6
2 22.05.2019 H60162344 Form MGT-14
3 21.06.2019 H67275537 Form MGT-14
4 15.07.2019 H77505022 Form MGT-14
5 18.07.2019 H77813251 Form BEN-2
6 30.07.2019 H79633210 FormMGT-15
7 09.08.2019 H81889693 Form PAS-3
8 09.08.2019 H81885998 FormMGT-14
9 01.10.2019 H98495815 FormBEN 2
10 01.10.2019 H98503378 FormBEN 2
11 03.10.2019 H99683567 Form MGT-14
12 24.10.2019 RO7780216 Form AOC-4(XBRL) FY 2018-19
13 05.11.2019 R10763274 FormIEPF 1
14 06.11.2019 R11003167 FormIEPF 2
15 16.11.2019 R13373162 Form IEPF 4
16 27.11.2019 R17249400 Form MGT-7FY 2018-19
17 30.11.2019 R20460127 FormDIR-12
18 05.03.2020 R34761361 Form DIR 12
19 05.03.2020 R34762070 Form MGT 14

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure -A and forms an integral part of this
report.

FOR BVR & ASSOCIATES COMPANY SECRATARIES LLP

Place: Cochin

Date: 09.06.2020 CS Yogindunath S

Designated Partner

UDIN: FO07865B000327426
FCS No. F7865

CPNo.9137
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ANNEXURE - A

Balaxi Ventures Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter

Place: Cochin

Date: 09.06.2020

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance

about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.

The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We

believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of

the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws,

rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test

basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

FOR BVR & ASSOCIATES COMPANY SECRATARIES LLP

CS Yogindunath S
Designated Partner
UDIN:FOO7865B000327426
M NO: 7865

CP: 9137
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[ ANNEXURE - IV

Policy on Appointment & Removal of Directors

1. Introduction:

a. Balaxi Ventures Limited (BVL) believes that an enlightened Board consciously creates a culture of
leadership to provide a long-term vision and policy approach to improve the quality of governance.
Towards this, we ensures constitution of a Board of Directors with an appropriate composition, size,
diversified expertise and experience and commitment to discharge their responsibilities and duties

effectively.
b. We recognise the importance of Independent Directors in achieving the effectiveness of the Board.
BVL aims to have an optimum combination of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors.
2. Scope And Exclusion:
a This Policy sets out the guiding principles for the Human Resources, Nomination and Remuneration

Committee for identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and to determine the
independence of Directors, in case of their appointment as independent directors of the Company.

3. Terms And References:

In this Policy, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
a. “Director” means a director appointed to the Board of a company.

b. “Nomination and Remuneration Committee” means the committee constituted by BVL's
Board in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
19 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”).

C. “Independent Director” means a director referred to in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 (1) (b) of Listing Regulations.

4. Policy

4.1  Qualifications and Criteria

a. Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and the Board, shall review on an annual basis,
appropriate skills, knowledge and experience required of the Board as a whole and its individual
members. The objective is to have a Board with diverse background and experience that are relevant
for the Company’s operations.

b. In evaluating the suitability of individual Board members, the following may take into account
factors, such as:

*  General understanding of the Company’s business dynamics, global business and social perspective;
*  Educational and professional background;

»  Standingin the profession;

»  Personal and professional ethics, integrity and values;

»  Willingness to devote sufficient time and energy in carrying out their duties and responsibilities
effectively.
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C. The proposed appointee shall also fulfill the following requirements:
e Shall possess a Director Identification Number;
*  Shall not be disqualified under the Companies Act, 2013;
»  Shall give his written consent to act as a Director;

»  Shall endeavour to attend all Board Meetings and wherever he is appointed as a Committee Member,
the Committee Meetings;

o Shall abide by the Code of Conduct established by the Company for Directors and Senior
Management Personnel;

»  Shall disclose his concern or interest in any company or companies or bodies corporate, firms, or
other association of individuals including his shareholding at the first meeting of the Board in every
financial year and thereafter whenever there is a change in the disclosures already made;

*  Suchother requirements as may be prescribed, from time to time, under the Companies Act, 2013

Criteria of Independence

a. Committee shall assess the independence of Directors at the time of appointment / re-appointment
and the Board shall assess the same annually.

b. The Board shall re-assess determinations of independence when any new interests or relationships
are disclosed by a Director.

C. The criteria of independence, as laid down in Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, is as
below:

An independent director in relation to a company, means a non-executive director, other than a managing
director or a whole-time director or a nominee director -

i.  who, in the opinion of the Board, is a person of integrity and possesses relevant expertise and
experience;

ii. ~ whoisorwasnotapromoter of the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company;

ili. who is not related to promoters or directors in the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate
company;

iv.  who has or had no pecuniary relationship with the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate
company, or their promoters, or directors, during the two immediately preceding financial years or
during the current financial year;

v.  none of whose relatives has or had pecuniary relationship or transaction with the company, its
holding, subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters, or directors, amounting to two per cent
or more of its gross turnover or total income or 50 lakh rupees or such higher amount as may be
prescribed, whichever is lower, during the two immediately preceding financial years or during the
current financial year;

vi.  who, neither himself nor any of his relatives -

(i) holds or has held the position of a key managerial personnel or is or has been an employee of the
company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company in any of the three financial years
immediately preceding the financial year in which he is proposed to be appointed;

(i) is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in any of the three financial years
immediately preceding the financial year in which he is proposed to be appointed, of -
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vii.

viii.

ix.

(A) a firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditors of the company or its
holding, subsidiary or associate company; or

(B) any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the company, its holding,
subsidiary or associate company amounting to 10 per cent or more of the gross turnover of such
firm;

(i) holds together with his relatives two per cent or more of the total voting power of the company; or

(iv) is a Chief Executive or director, by whatever name called, of any non-profit organisation that
receives twenty-five per cent or more of its receipts or corpus from the company, any of its
promoters, directors or its holding, subsidiary or associate company or that holds two per cent or
more of the total voting power of the company; or

(v) is a material supplier, service provider or customer or a lessor or lessee of the company.

shall possess appropriate skills, experience and knowledge in one or more fields of finance, law,
management, sales, marketing, administration, research, corporate governance, technical
operations, corporate social responsibility or other disciplines related to the company’s business.

shall possess such other qualifications as may be prescribed, from time to time, under the Companies
Act,2013.

whois not less than 21 years of age.

The Independent Directors shall abide by the “Code for Independent Directors™ as specified in
Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013.

Other Directorships / Committee Memberships

a.

The Board members are expected to have adequate time and expertise and experience to contribute
to effective Board performance. Accordingly, members should voluntarily limit their directorships in
other listed public limited companies in such a way that it does not interfere with their role as
directors of the Company. The Committee shall take into account the nature of, and the time involved
in a Director’s service on other Boards, in evaluating the suitability of the individual Director and
making its recommendations to the Board.

A Director shall not serve as Director in more than 20 companies of which not more than 10 shall be
Public Limited Companies.

A Director shall not serve as an Independent Director in more than 7 Listed Companies and not more
than 3 Listed Companies in case he is serving as a Whole-time Director in any Listed Company.

A Director shall not be a member in more than 10 Committees or act as Chairman of more than 5
Committees across all companies in which he holds directorships.

For the purpose of considering the limit of the Committees, Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee of all Public Limited Companies, whether listed or not, shall be included and all other companies
including Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies under Section 8 of the Companies
Act, 2013 shall be excluded.

Review of the Policy

This Policy will be reviewed and reassessed by the board as and when required and appropriate
recommendations shall be made by the Board to update this Policy based on changes that may be brought
about due to any regulatory amendments or otherwise.
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ANNEXURE - V [

Remuneration Policy for Directors,
Key Managerial Personal and Other Employees

Introduction:

Balaxi Ventures Limited (BVL) recognises the importance of aligning the business objectives with specific and
measurable individual objectives and targets. The Company has therefore formulated the remuneration
policy for its directors, key managerial personnel and other employees keeping in view the following
objectives:

L Ensuring that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain
and motivate, to run the company successfully.

ii. Ensuring that relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets the performance
benchmarks.

iii. ~ Ensuring that remuneration involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and
long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals.

Scope and Exclusion:

This Policy sets out the guiding principles for the Human Resources, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee for recommending to the Board the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and
other employees of the Company.

Terms and References:

In this Policy, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
a. “Director” means a director appointed to the Board of the Company.

b. “Key Managerial Personnel” means
(i) the Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director;
(ii) the Company Secretary;and
(iii) the Chief Financial Officer;

C. Nomination and Remuneration Committee(committee)” means the committee constituted
by BVL's Board in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 19 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”).

Policy:
i. Remuneration to Executive Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

a. The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(Committee), shall review and approve the remuneration payable to the Executive Directors of
the Company within the overall limits approved by the shareholders.

b.  The Board, on the recommendation of the Committee, shall also review and approve the
remuneration payable to the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

c.  The remuneration structure to the Executive Directors and Key Managerial Personnel shall
include the following components:

(i) BasicPay
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i) Perquisites and Allowances

iii) Stock Options

(
(
(iv) Commission (Applicable in case of Executive Directors)
(v) Retrial benefits

(vi) Annual Performance Bonus

ii. Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors;

a. The Board, on the recommendation of the Committee, shall review and approve the
remuneration payable to the Non-Executive Directors of the Company within the overall limits
approved by the shareholders.

b.  Non-Executive Directors shall be entitled to sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board
and the Committees thereof. The Non-Executive Directors shall also be entitled to profit related
commission in addition to the sitting fees.

jii. Remuneration to other employees

a. Employees shall be assigned grades according to their qualifications and work experience,
competencies as well as their roles and responsibilities in the organisation. Individual
remuneration shall be determined within the appropriate grade and shall be based on various
factors such as job profile, skill sets, seniority, experience and prevailing remuneration levels for
equivalent jobs.

b.  Basic/ fixed salary is provided to all employees to ensure that there is a steady income in line
with their skills and experience.

c.  Inaddition to the basic/ fixed salary, the company provides employees with certain perquisites,
allowances and benefits to enable a certain level of lifestyle and to offer scope for savings and
tax optimisation, where possible.

d.  The company provides the rest of the employees a performance linked bonus. The performance
linked bonus would be driven by the outcome of the performance appraisal process and the
performance of the company.

[ ANNEXURE - VI

Declaration Regarding Compliance by Board Members and
Senior Management Personnel with the Code of Conduct

To the best of my knowledge and belief and on the basis of declarations given to me, I hereby affirm that all the Board
Members and the Senior Management Personnel have fully complied with the provisions of the Code of Conduct for
Directors and Senior Management during the financial year ended March 31,2020

. Ashish Maheshwari
Place: Hyderabad Managing Director &
Date: 16.06.2020 Chief Financial Officer

DIN: 01575984
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[ ANNEXURE - VII [

FORM NO. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31* MARCH 2020
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

L REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

1 | CIN L25191TG1942PLC121598
2 | Registration Date 28/09/1942
3 | Name of the Company Balaxi Ventures Limited
4 | Category / Sub-Category of the Company | Public Limited Company
5 | Address of the Registered office & Plot No.409, MAPS Towers,
contact details 3rd Floor, Phase-IIl, Road No.81, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad,

Telangana, India -500096.
e-mail: secretarial@balaxiventures.in
Ph:+91 40 2355 - 5300

6 | Whether listed company Yes
(National Stock Exchange of India Ltd)

7 Name, Address and Contact details of SKDC Consultants Limited,

Registrar and Transfer Agent Kanapathy Towers, 3rd Floor, 1391/A-1, Sathy Road,
Ganapathy, Coimbatore - 641 006

Contact Person: Vijayalakshmi.S,

Ph: 0422 654994

E-mail:info@skdc-consultants.com

IL PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

SL. Name and Description of main NIC Code of % to total turnover
No. products / services the Product/ service of the company
1 Pharmaceuticals 21002 62.92%

III.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

SL. Name and Address CIN Holding/ Subsidiary/ % of shares| Applicable
No. of the Company Associate held Section
1 | Balaxi Overseas Private Limited | U51909TG2003PTC040399  Holding Company 70.00 2(46)
2 | Balaxi Global DMCC, Dubai Not Applicable Whou}{ Owned 100 2(87)
Subsidiary
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(iii) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING:
% of total
s VE RIS g o e G
company
01/04/2019 2000036 2000036 | 65.791 | 3040000
21/06/2019| Balaxi Overseas Private Limited | 2000036 0 | 2000036 | 65.791 | 3040000
30/08/2019 2000036 | 4999964 7000000 | 70.000 ' 10000000
31/03/2020 7000000 0 0 | 7000000 | 70.000 | 10000000
01/04/2019 120738 120738 | 3.972 | 3040000
30/08/2019| Ashish Maheshwari 120738 60036 180774 | 1.808 | 10000000
31/03/2020 180774 0 0 180774  1.808 | 10000000
01/04/2019| Minoshi Maheshwari 105580 105580 | 3.473 | 3040000
31/03/2020 105580 0 0 105580 | 1.056 | 10000000
(ivy SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS (OTHER THAN DIRECTORS,
PROMOTERS AND HOLDERS OF GDRS AND ADRS):
Shareholding at the Shareholding at the
SL. For each of top beginning of the year end of the year
No. 10 shareholders No.of Shares % No.of Shares %
1 | Elara India Opportunities Fund Limited 0 0.000 950000 9.500
2 | Marshal Global Capital Fund Ltd 0 0.000 950000 9.500
3  Amol Anand Mantri 400500 13.174 400500 4.005
4 | Investor Education And Protection Fund 5284 0.174 73426 0.734
5 PP Zibi Jose 26746 0.880 49090 0.491
6  Aji Philip 750 0.025 20245 0.202
1400 0.046 1400 0.014
50 0.002 50 0.001
50 0.002 50 0.001
50 0.002 50 0.001
7 | Santha Philipose 9000 0.296 18500 0.185
50 0.002 50 0.001
50 0.002 50 0.001
50 0.002 50 0.001
8 | Leena Sachin Shetty 0 0.000 15776 0.158
9 | Chartered Holdings India Private Limited 0 0.000 15353 0.154
10 | Shaju Mathai 15079 0.496 15079 0.151
11 | Venugopal K Pai 9638 0.317 9638 0.096
5000 0.164 5000 0.050
12 | Bimal Kumar Bedi 9930 0.327 9930 0.099
13 | Madhuri Thakkar 9749 0.321 9749 0.097
14 |V Alagappan 29800 0.980 300 0.003
15 | Usha Saraogi 20144 0.663 0 0.000
16 | Muraleedharan K.U. 19000 0.625 0 0.000
17 | Kavya Thilakaraj 10000 0.329 0 0.000
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V) SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
% of total
e NAME CEnes | Boght | Sold | AR GRS
company
1 ASHISH MAHESHWARI 120738 3972 180774 1.808 -2.164
2 MINOSHI MAHESHWARI 105580 3473 105580 1.056 -2.417
3 KUNAL B BHAKTA 0 0.000 0 0.000 0.000
4 GANDHI GAMJI 0 0.000 0 0.000 0.000
5 NIDHIN JOSE 0 0.000 0 0.000 0.000
V. INDEBTEDNESS:
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
ecured Loans .
Particulars exScluding deposits Un]f(e)gzged Deposits Indell;(t)é?ilness
Indebtedness at the beginning of
the financial year
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
* Addition
* Reduction
Net Change
Indebtedness at the
end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii) NIL NIL NIL NIL

VL

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager

S1. No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Ashish Maheshwari
Managing Director & CFO

1.

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1)
of the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
Income-tax Act, 1961

30,00,000

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission - as % of profit - others, specify

G

Others, please specify (sitting fees)

50,000

Total

30,50,000*

Ceiling as per the Act

5% of net profits 46,32,800

@ Balaxi Ventures Limited




B. Remuneration to other directors:

()N 5oaxs Repor |

(INR)

Particulars of Remuneration Kunal Bhakta Gandhi Gamji Total Amount
Independent Directors
- Fee for attending board committee meetings 50,000 50,000 10,000
- Commission
- Others, please specify
Total (1) 50,000 50,000 1,00,000
Non-Executive Director Minoshi Maheshwari
- Fee for attending board committee meetings 50,000 50,000
- Commission - -
- Others, please specify (Salary) 18,00,000 18,00,000*
Total (2) 18,50,000 18,50,000
Total (B)=(1+2) 19,50,000
Total Managerial Remuneration (A+B) 50,00,000*
Overall Ceiling as per the Act 1% of Net Profits 9,26,560

11% of Net Profits 1,01,92,160

*Shareholders consent is sought through special resolution on September 25, 2019

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD: .

NR)
SL Nidhin Jose
Particulars CEO
No. Company Secretary
1. | Gross salary 15,00,000
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
2. | Stock Option
3. | Sweat Equity
4. | Commission - as % of profit - others, specify---
5. | Others, please specify -
Total 15,00,000
VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NIL
. Details of Penalty / .
T Section of the Brief Punishment/ g Auéhorlty [(I}D / Appeal if any
ype Companies Description Compounding NCLEmade (give Details)
Act fees imposed COURT]
A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding -
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty -
Punishment
Compounding
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[ ANNEXURE - VIII [

Certificate on Corporate Governance

To,
The Members of,
Balaxi Ventures Limited,

Hyderabad,

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Balaxi Ventures Limited having its
registered office at Plot No.409,H.No. 8-2-293, Maps Towers 3rd Floor, Phase-III, Road No.81,Jubilee Hills Hyderabad-
500096 for the year ended March 31, 2020 as stipulated in Regulation 17 to 27 and clause (b) to (i) of Regulation 46 (2),
Schedule V and Schedule II of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (*SEBI Listing Regulations”).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination has
been limited to a review of the procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated above. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the
financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the
representations made by the Directors and the management and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India warranted due to the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, we
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing
Regulations for the year ended on March 31, 2020.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

FOR BVR & ASSOCIATES COMPANY SECRATARIES LLP

Place: Cochin

Date: 06.08.2020 CS Yogindunath S

Designated Partner

UDIN: FOO7865B000554961
M NO: 7865

CP: 9137
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ANNEXURE - IX [

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Certification

Board of Directors

Balaxi Ventures Limited,

Hyderabad

[, Ashish Maheshwari, Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the company, to the best of my knowledge and
belief, certify that:

1.

ii.

iii.

iv.

I have reviewed the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of the

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information of the Company for the year ended
March 31, 2020.

These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report.

The financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, present in all material
respects a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs, the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the Company for the periods presented in this report, and are in compliance with the
existing accounting standards and / or applicable laws and regulations.

There are no transactions entered into by the Company during the year that are fraudulent, illegal or
violate the Company’s Code of Conduct and Ethics, except as disclosed to the Company’s auditors and the
Company’s audit committee of the Board of Directors.

I am responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures and internal
controls over financial reporting for the Company, and [ have:

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under my supervision to ensure that material information relating to the Company,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to me by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared.

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under my supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS).

Evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure, controls and procedures.

Disclosed in this report, changes, if any, in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting, that
occurred during the Company’s most recent fiscal year that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
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6. I had disclosed, based on my most recent evaluation of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting, wherever applicable, to the Company’s auditors and the audit committee of the Company’s
Board:

i.  Anydeficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, that could adversely affect the Company’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data, and have confirmed that there have been
no material weaknesses in internal controls over financial reporting including any corrective actions
with regard to deficiencies.

iil.  Anysignificant changes in internal controls during the year covered by this report.

iti. All significant changes in accounting policies during the year, if any, and the same have been disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.

iv.  Any instances of significant fraud of which I am aware, that involvement of the Management or other
employees who have a significant role in the Company’s internal control system.

7. [ affirm that I had not denied any personnel access to the audit committee of the Company (in respect of
matters involving alleged misconduct) and I provided protection to whistle-blowers from unfair
termination and other unfair or prejudicial employment practices.

8. [ further declare that all Board members and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance
with the Code of Conduct and Ethics for the year covered by this report.

) Ashish Maheshwari
Place: Hyderabad Managing Director &
Date: 16.06.2020 Chief Financial Officer

DIN: 01575984

@ Balaxi Ventures Limited



@ Corporate Governance Report

[ REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE [

The Corporate Governance norms under SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 is
applicable to the company, if the paid-up capital of the Company is more than INR. 10 Crores and Net worth of the
Company is more than INR. 25 Crores. The Company falls under the said criteria on January 01, 2020 and the company is
having a time period of Six months to comply with Corporate Governance norms under regulation 15 (2)(a) SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015.

Report on Corporate Governance for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020, as stipulated in the relevant provisions of
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
amended from time to time (the ‘Listing Regulations’), is set out below:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY

The Company believes that good Corporate Governance emerges from the application of the best and sound management
practices and compliance with the laws with highest standards of transparency and business ethics. These practices are
continuously followed by the Company since inception and the same has immensely contributed to its sustained growth.
Efforts are being channelized into reimagining the current practices and processes to inspire dynamic business
environment that the Company reside in. The Governance system followed by the Company over the years has enhanced
the value of stakeholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
a. Composition;

The present composition of the Board is in compliance with the requirements of Regulation 17(1) of the Listing
Regulations. The Board of Directors (the ‘Board’) of the Company comprises of optimum mix of Executive and
Non-Executive Directors, with Fifty percent of the Board as Independent Directors. During the year under review,
there were no changes in the Board of Directors.

AsonMarch 31, 2020, strength of the Board of the Company consists of four Directors, of which one is Executive
Director and three are Non-Executive Directors. The Board has two Independent Directors, in compliance with the
requirements of proviso to Regulation 17(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations. Total number of women Directors on
the Board is one. Executive Director and One Non-Executive Director are from promoter category. Present tenure
of two of the Independent Directors is for a period of five years effective from May 04, 2017. The Board
periodically reviews its composition to ensure compliance with the regulatory requirements and it is closely
aligned with the strategic and long-term goals of the Company.

All the Independent Directors have declared that they meet the criteria of ‘Independence’ as required under the
provisions of Section 149 of Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) read with the provisions of Regulation 16 of the
Listing Regulations. The Board confirm that, in its opinion, the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions
specified in the Listing Regulations and are independent of the Management.

The following are the names, position and categories of Directors as on March 31, 2020:

Name of Director Position Category

Mr. Ashish Maheshwari Managing Director Promoter and Executive

Ms. Minoshi Maheshwari Director Promoter and Non-Executive
Mr. Kunal M Bhakta Director Non-Executive Independent
Mr. Gandhi Gamji Director Non-Executive Independent

As per the declarations received from the Directors, none of the Director was disqualified under Section 164(2) of
the Act. During the year under review, none of the Independent Director of the Company has resigned from the
Board.
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b. Attendance of each Director at the meetings of Board and General Meeting;

During the year under review, Board of Directors met 5 (five) times on May 03, 2019, June 19, 2019, August 09, 2019,
October 29, 2019 and February 14, 2020 in respect of which, proper notices were given and the proceedings were
properly recorded and signed in the Minutes Book maintained for the purpose. The intervening gap between the Meetings
was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation 2015. The Board Meetings of the Company are generally held at the Registered Office of the
Company.

The Board agenda with proper explanatory notes are prepared and circulated on time to all the Board members. All
statutory and other matters of significant importance including information as mentioned in Part A of Schedule II to the
Listing Regulations are tabled before the Board, to enable it to take appropriate decisions in both strategic and regulatory
matters. The Board reviews compliances of all laws, rules and regulations on a quarterly basis. At the Board Meeting,
members have full freedom to express their opinion, and decisions are taken after detailed deliberations.

Details of attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting (AGM) held during the Financial
Year are given below along with Directorship on Board and Membership / Chairmanship of Board Committees in other
companies as on March 31, 2020:

Atter_ldance 1\]0. of oth.er Committe?
Name of the Director Boalr’(:;lrtlcularzast Directorships Membership
Meetings AGM Director = Chairman Member | Chairman
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Ashish Maheshwari
(Managing Director) 5 Yes 1 None None None
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
Mr. Kunal M Bhakta 5 Yes 1 None None None
Mr. Gandhi Gamji 4 No 1 None None None
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Ms. Minoshi Maheshwari ‘ 5 Yes 1 None None None

During the year under review, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on February 14,
2020, at the Registered Office of the Company and the members discussed the matters enumerated in the Schedule IV to
the Act and Regulation 25(3) of the Listing Regulations.

The members reviewed the performance of:
a) Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole;
b) Chairman of the Board, considering the views of Executive and Non-Executive Directors; and

c) Assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information from the Company Management to the
Board, which is required for the Board to perform its duties reasonably and effectively.

c. Disclosure of Relationship between Directors Inter-se

Mr. Ashish Maheshwari and Ms. Minoshi Maheshwari are promoter directors of the company. Ms. Minoshi
Maheshwari is the spouse of Mr. Ashish Maheshwari. None of the other directors have any inter-se relationship.

d. Number of shares and convertible instruments held by directors;

Mr. Ashish Maheshwari (Executive Director) holds 180774 Equity Shares of the company and Mr. Minoshi
Maheshwari (Non-Executive Director) holds 105580 Equity Shares of the company as on March 31, 2020. None
of the other directors hold any shares in the company as on March 31, 2020. The Company is not having any
convertible instruments during the period under review.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Senior Management team has confirmed to the Board of Directors that no material and commercial
transactions have been entered into between the Company and members of Senior Management team, where
they have personal interest.

Notice of interest by Senior Management Personnel

Details of familiarization programmes imparted to Independent Directors

The Company has conducted familiarization programmes from time to time for all the Independent Directors of
the Company, to enable them to familiarize with the nature of the industry in which the Company operates, its
business model etc., and the role to be played by them. Their rights and responsibilities were intimated through
the Letter of Appointment issued to them. During the Financial Year under review, the Company had conducted
session on overall performance of the Company, strategy and strategic initiatives, regulatory updates and on
Internal Financial Controls. The details of such familiarization programmes are disclosed on the Company’s
website at www.balaxiventures.in

List of core skills, expertise and competencies of Board of Directors

The Company is engaged in the business of International Wholesale distribution of Pharmaceuticals, Builders
Hardware and FMCG. To manage the operations and to formulate long term strategies for its growth, different
skill sets are required. The Board of the Company consists of individuals who have experience and expertise in the
following areas:

International Trade Promoter directors are having extensive knowledge in International trade of
Pharmaceuticals, Builder's Hardware and FMCG segment. They are having
more than 2 decades of experience in global trade.

Strategy & Transformation Board is having experience in developing and reviewing long term business
strategy for sustainable growth and profitability of businesses in highly
competitive landscape.

Sales /Marketing Developing strategies to protect and grow brand equity and distribution

reach. Understanding evolution in channels and strategies required to
protect and grow the business. Understand developments in the Digital
space, its potential to disrupt consumer business and recommend plans to
leverage these developments effectively for growth and efficiency

Finance Evaluating the financial viability of various strategic proposals, review of
capital budgets, financial results / statements, risks associated with the
business and the minimization procedure. The Lead Independent Director
who is acting as the Audit Committee Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company are Chartered Accountants.

Corporate Governance Ensuring putting in place best in class practices in various functional areas to
strengthen the governance system.

Performance Evaluation of Board, Sub- Committees of the Board, Chairman and all other Directors

The Evaluation Policy of the company details the evaluation criteria for performance of the Board, its Committees,
Chairman of the Board, Independent Directors and all the individual Directors. As per the criteria laid down in the
Policy, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board in its meeting held on February 14, 2020, has
carried out the evaluation of performance of individual directors. Further, the Board in its meeting held on
February 14, 2020, carried out evaluation of the Board as a whole, its various Sub-Committees, Chairman of the
Board and all the Individual and Independent Directors on the Board. The evaluation was carried out by framing
appropriate questions considering the role played by the Board, Sub-Committees, Chairman and each Individual
Director.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

ii.

iii.

iv.

=

e 0

< @ ™ o

Vii.
viii.

ix.

Xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

Audit Committee acts as a link between management and external auditors. Audit Committee is responsible for
overseeing Company’s financial reporting process by providing direction to audit function and monitoring the
scope and quality of statutory audits. Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of
Regulation 18(1) of Listing Regulations read with Section 177 of Companies Act, 2013. Broad terms of reference
of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process and disclosure of its financial information to ensure that
the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

Recommending to the Board the appointment, reappointment and terms of appointment of auditors of the
Company;
Approval of payments to the statutory auditors for services rendered by them;

Reviewing with the Management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon before submission
to the Board for approval with particular reference to:

Matters required to be included in the Directors’ responsibility statement to be included in the Board’s report in
terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3)of Section 134 of the Act;

Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgement by management

Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

Disclosure of any related party transactions;

Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;

Reviewing with the Management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for approval;

Reviewing with the Management, the statement of uses/application of funds raised through an issue (public
issue, rights issue, preferential issue etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in
the offer document/ prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency, monitoring the
utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take
up steps in this matter;

Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance and effectiveness of audit process.
Approval of any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company wherever it is necessary;

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

Reviewing with the Management, the performance of statutory and internal auditors and adequacy of the internal
control systems;

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department,
staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure, coverage and frequency of
internal audit;

Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up there on;

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting matters
to the Board;

Discussion with the statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as
post audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;
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xvil.To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,

shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

xviii. Reviewing the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

XiX.

XX.

XXi.

ii.

Approval of appointment of CFO after assessing the qualifications, experience and background etc., of the
candidate; and

Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the subsidiary
exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower.

Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in terms of reference of the Audit committee under the SEBI
Listing Regulation.

Composition

Audit Committee comprises of Mr. Kunal Bhakta, Mr. Gandhi Gamji (Non-Executive Independent Directors) and
Mr. Ashish Maheshwari (Executive Director) as the Members. Company Secretary is the Secretary to the
Committee. All members of Audit Committee are financially literate and have expertise in accounting/financial
management. Mr. Kunal Bhakta, Chairman - Audit Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting of
the company.

Audit Committee of the Company, inter alia, provides reassurance to the Board on the existence of an effective
internal control environment, overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process and disclosure of its
financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

Meetings And Attendance

Audit Committee met 4 (four) times on May 03, 2019, August 09, 2019, October 29, 2019 and February 14,
2020 during the year ended on March 31, 2020 and the time gap between any two meetings did not exceed
more than four months.

Name of Members Category No of Meetings attended
Kunal M Bhakta Non-Executive Independent Director 4
Gandhi Gamji Non-Executive Independent Director 3
Ashish Maheshwari Executive Director 4

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

ii.
iii.

iv.

Vi.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of
Regulation 19(1) of the Listing Regulations read with Section 178 of the Act.

Brief description of terms and reference

The broad terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee includes the following:

Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Directors and
recommend to the Board, a policy relating to the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
other employees;

Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;
Devising suitable policy on board diversity;

Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management in
accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal;

To extend or continue the term of appointment of Independent Directors, on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation of Independent Directors;

Recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.
The Company has adopted a Nomination, Remuneration and Evaluation Policy for Directors,

Key Managerial Personnel and other employees which is available on the website of the Company at
www.balaxiventures.in in the page Investor Relations'. A copy of the said Policy forms part of this Annual Report.
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b. Composition

Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of Mr. Kunal M Bhakta and Mr. Gandhi Gamji (Non-
Executive Independent Directors) and Mrs. Minoshi Maheshwari (Non-Executive Director) as the Members. Mr.
Kunal M Bhakta, Chairman of the Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the company.

The meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held 2(two) times during the year ended on
March 31,2020 on August 09, 2019 and February 14, 2020

Name of Members Category No of Meetings attended
Kunal M Bhakta Non-Executive Independent Director 2

Gandhi Gamji Non-Executive Independent Director 2

Minoshi Maheshwari Non-Executive Director 2

c. Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors

As per the Nomination, Remuneration and Evaluation policy of the Company, the Independent Directors of the
Company are evaluated based on criteria such as highest personal and professional ethics, integrity, values and
independence, contribution to Board deliberation, willingness to devote sufficient time to carry out the duties and
responsibilities effectively including attendance at the meetings, act in the best interest of minority shareholders
of the Company etc.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

a.

Details of pecuniary relationship or transaction of Non-Executive Directors with the Company

Ms. Minoshi Maheshwari, Non-Executive Director was paid a remuneration of INR. 18,00,000 during the
financial year 2019-20. The Company obtained Shareholder’s consent in the form of Special Resolution for the
above said payment on September 25, 2019. The company also paid sitting fees for attending the Board meetings
of the company and also reimbursed the business related expenditure occurred by the Non-Executive Director.

Criteria of making payments to Non-Executive Directors

The Company has adopted Nomination, Remuneration and Evaluation Policy, which describes the criteria of
making payments to Non-Executive Directors. The Policy is available in the website of the Company at
www.balaxiventures.in

The Non-Executive Director is paid sitting fees for attending meetings of Board, which is duly approved by the
Board of Directors of the Company and the present fee payable to the Directors for attending the meetings is
within the limits specified in Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014.

Details of Remuneration paid to the Directors

The following are the details of remuneration and sitting fee paid to the Directors of the Company during the
Financial Year under review;

Benefits, Bonuses,

Name Salary Stock Options, Pensions etc

Sitting Fees

Mr. Ashish Maheshwari 30,00,000 - 50,000

Ms. Minoshi Maheshwari 18,00,000 - 50,000

Mr. Kunal M Bhakta - - 50,000

Mr. Gandhi Gamji - - 50,000

The company is not paying any severance fees, commission, performance linked incentive, stock options to any of
the directors.
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STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of the Company is considering and resolving the grievances of the Shareholders of
the Company, including complaints relating to transfer and transmission of securities, non-receipt of dividends, and such
other grievances as may be raised by the shareholders from time to time.

Committee also reviews the manner and time-lines of dealing with complaint letters received from Stock Exchanges/
SEBI/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs etc, and responses thereto. Based on the delegated powers of Board of Directors,
Registrar and Transfer Agent approve the Share transfers/ transmissions on a regular basis and the same is reported to
Company Secretary. Company Secretary further would report the same at the next meeting of Committee.

a. Composition
Stakeholders’” Relationship Committee comprises of Mr. Kunal M Bhakta, Mr. Gandhi Gamji, (Non-Executive
Independent Directors) and Mrs. Minoshi Maheshwari (Non-Executive Director) as the Members. Mr. Kunal M
Bhakta is the chairman of the committee and was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company.
Meeting of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee was held 1(one) time during the year ended March 31,
2020 on August 09,2019.

Name of Members Category No of Meetings attended
Kunal M Bhakta Non-Executive Independent Director 1
Gandhi Gamji Non-Executive Independent Director 1
Minoshi Maheshwari Non-Executive Director 1
b. Terms ofreference;
The terms of reference of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee are as follows:

i. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to transmission
of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/ duplicate certificates,
general meetings etc.

ii. Approving of demat and remat requests and authorize fixation of common seal of the Company on the share
certificate(s).

ili. Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

iv. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services being
rendered by the Registrar & Transfer Agent.

v. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of unclaimed
dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the
shareholders of the Company.

c¢. Name and Designation of Compliance Officer
The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Nidhin Jose, Company Secretary of the Company as Compliance Officer
for the above said purpose.

d. Redressal of Investor Grievances
The Company addresses all the complaints, suggestions and grievances expeditiously. The details of complaints
received and resolved during the year are as follows:

S1. No Complaints received Status
L. No. of investor complaints as on April 01, 2019 NIL
No. of investor complaints received and resolved during the year 05
No. of investor complaints pending as on March 31, 2020 NIL
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GENERAL BODY MEETING
a. Details of the Annual General Meetings held during the last three years are as follows:

Financial Year Date Time Location
76th AGM-2018-19 25.09.2019 09.30 AM Registered Office
75th AGM-2017-18 20.09.2018 11.30AM Registered Office
74th AGM-2016-17 30.09.2017 11.30AM Registered Office

b. Details of Special resolutions passed in the previous three Annual General meetings and Extra Ordinary
General Meeting;
Date of AGM Details of Special Resolutions passed if any
76th Annual General Meeting Payment of Remuneration to Mr. Ashish Maheshwari
held on September 25,2019 (DIN: 01575984) Managing Director;

Payment of remuneration to Mrs. Minoshi Maheshwarti
(DIN: 01575975) Non Executive Director

75th Annual General Meeting

held on September 20, 2018 None
74th Annual General Meeting
held on September 30,2017 None

c. Postal Ballot

During period under review, pursuant to Section 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory amendment(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof made thereunder), your Company has not passed the any resolutions through postal ballot:

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
a. Quarterly Results:

The Company regularly intimates information like quarterly/half yearly/annual financial results from time to
time. The financial results and other official news releases are also placed in the investor relations section of the
website of the Company at www.balaxiventures.in and have also been communicated to the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (NSE) in which the shares of the Company are listed.

b. Newspapers wherein results normally published;
Business Standard : English daily- All India Edition
Mana Telangana : Telugu daily- Regional Edition

c. Details of website and display of official news releases and presentation made to institutional investors or
to analysts;

The website of the Company, www.balaxiventures.in contains comprehensive information about the Company, its
business, Directors, Sub-Committees of the Board, terms and conditions of appointment of Independent
Directors, products, service helplines, various policies adopted by the Board, details of unpaid dividend, contact
details for investor grievance redressal, financial statements of subsidiary, shareholding pattern, notice of
meeting of Board of Directors, quarterly unaudited financial results, audited financial results, annual report,
shareholder information, schedule of analyst or institutional investor, presentations made to analysts or
institutional investor, other developments etc.
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a. Annual General Meeting Date, Time and Venue;

Corporate Governance Report

Details are mentioned in the notice for 77th Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

b. Financial Year;

The financial year of the Company starts from April 01, of a year and ends on March 31, of the following year.

c. Dividend

The Board has not made recommendation for the final dividend.

d. Listing Status;

The Company’s shares are listed at National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE). The Equity Shares of the
company is currently trading at NSE under Stock Code BALAXI. The Company has paid the listing fees to NSE and
the custodian charges to National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India)

Limited (CDSL) for the financial year ended March 31,2020
Market price data- high, low during each month in the Financial Year 2019-20;

Month High (INR) Low (INR)
April, 2019 95.20 39.90
May, 2019 140.40 80.75
June, 2019 115.00 76.90
July, 2019 85.90 60.65
August, 2019 92.15 60.00
September, 2019 102.05 82.70
October, 2019 90.90 73.15
November, 2019 83.55 63.90
December, 2019 90.00 66.65
January, 2020 86.90 64.05
February, 2020 130.90 75.10
March, 2020 116.90 64.35
NIFTY HIGHT V/S BALAXI HIGH
160 12600
140 12400
12200
120 12000
100 11800
11600
80
11400
60 11200
40 11000
10800
20 10600
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April  May = June  July Aug Sep Oct Feb Mar
—@=BALAXI 95.2 140.4 115 859 92.15 102.05 90.9 1309 116.9
=@=NIFTY 11856.2 12041.2 12103.1 11981.8 11181.5 11694.9 11945 12158.8 12293.9 12430.5 12246.7 11433
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The Company’s shares were not suspended from trading during the Financial Year under review.

Registrar and Transfer Agents;

SKDC CONSULTANTS LIMITED

P.B.No. 2016, Kanapathy Towers, 3rd Floor, 1391/A-1,
Sathy Road, Ganapathy, Coimbatore - 641006,
Ph:0422-4958995,2539835 - 836,
Fax:0422-2539837,

E-mail : info@skdc-consultants.com

Website : www.skdc-consultants.com

SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM

M/s. SKDC Consultants Ltd., the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents looks after the share transfer system in the
Company. Further, the Board delegated the authority for approving transfer, transmission, etc. of the Company’s
securities to the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of the Board.

Pursuant to the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Notification regarding Companies (Prospectus and allotment of
securities) 3rd Amendment Rules 2018 dated 10th September, 2018, the Company will not permit transfer of shares in
physical form with effect from October 2, 2018. Further, Securities and Exchange Board of India has barred physical
transfer of shares of listed companies effective from April 01, 2019 and mandated the share transfer only through
Electronic Mode. However the above decision does not prohibit the investor from holding the shares in physical form.
Investor has the option of holding shares in physical form even after October 2,2018/ April 01, 2019 as the case may be.
Also the SEBI decision is not applicable for transmission (i.e. transfer of title of shares by way of inheritance / succession)
and transposition (i.e. re-arrangement/interchanging of the order of name of shareholders) cases. Subject to the above,
the request for transfer /transmission/ transposition, etc., as and when received, are duly processed and shares in respect
of'valid share transfer instruments are transferred in the names of transferees by complying with rules in force.

The Company obtains half yearly certificate of compliance with the share transfer formalities as required under
Regulation 40 (10) of the Listing Regulation with Stock Exchanges from a Company Secretary in Practice, and files a copy
of the certificate with the Stock Exchange.

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING;

Distribution of Shareholding of the company as on March 31, 2020 is as follows;

No of Equity Shares No. of shareholders Percentage Number of shares Percentage
Upto 500 514 87.27 32472 0.33
501 - 1000 21 3.56 17058 0.17
1001 - 2000 11 1.87 15915 0.16
2001 - 3000 19 3.22 49463 0.49
3001 - 4000 2 0.34 7000 0.07
4001 - 5000 1 0.17 5000 0.05
5001 - 10000 6 1.02 48330 0.48
10001 ANDABOVE 15 2.55 9824762 98.25
TOTAL 589 100.00 10000000 100.00
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ii. Category of shareholders as at March 31, 2020

Category No of Shares Percentage
Promoter Company 70,00,000 70.00 %
Promoter Group 2,86,354 02.86%
Total Promoter Holdings 72,86,354 72.86%
Foreign Institutional Investments (FPIs) 19,01,272 19.01%
Retail Investors and others 8,12,374 08.12%
Total 100,00,000 100.00%
SHAREHOLDING PATTERN

@ Promoter Holdings
Foreign Institutional Investments (FPIs)

[ Retail Investors and others

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY

Shares of the Company can be held and traded in electronic form. As stipulated by SEBI, the shares of the Company are
accepted in the Stock Exchanges for delivery only in dematerialisation form. The entire Promoter’s holdings are in
electronic form and the same is in line with the direction issued by SEBI.

The Equity shares of the Company have been admitted for Demat with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). The ISIN Number allotted to the Company is INE618NO1014.
Shareholders can avail the Demat facility and get their shares in the physical form converted into demat form.
Shareholders are advised to convert their holdings into demat at the earliest.

The status of shares held in dematerialised and physical forms as on March 31, 2020 are given below:

Particulars No of Shares Percentage
Shares held in Dematerialised form 99,41,640 9941
Shares held in Physical form 58,360 00.59

Total 100,00,000 100.00

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity:

The company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible Instruments during the period under review
and hence the same is not applicable on the company.
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Commodity Price Risks and Commodity hedging activities:

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company has managed its foreign exchange risk by make necessary
arrangements in working capital cycle and by making suitable arrangements with the customers of the company. Details
are provided in the financial statement of the company.

Plantlocations;
The company is not having any plant and the same the not applicable to the company.
Credit Ratings;

The Company does not have any debt instruments or any fixed deposit programme or any scheme or proposal involving
mobilisation of funds, whether in India or abroad and hence the company didn’t obtain any credit rating on this behalf. the
Company is not categorised as a Large Corporate in terms of SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/144 dated
November 26,2018.

Address for Correspondence are as follows;

The Company Secretary

Balaxi Ventures Limited,

Plot No.409, MAPS Towers, 3rd Floor, Phase-III

Road No.81, Jubilee hills, Hyderabad, Telangana, India -500096
website: www.balaxiventures.in, email: secretarial@balaxiventures.in
Contact No: 040-23555300

OTHER DISCLOSURES

a. Disclosures on Materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with
interest of the listed entity atlarge;

All transactions with related parties were entered in the books as prescribed during the financial year was in the
ordinary course of business only. There were no materially significant related party transactions with the
Directors, Management or their relatives, which could have had a potential conflict with the interests of the
Company. Details of related party transaction entered into during the FY 2019-20 are given in notes to the
financial statements.

b. Details of Non-Compliance by the Company, Penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by Stock
Exchange or the Board or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets during lasts
three years;

During the period under review, there occurred a delay in filing Annual Report under Regulation 34 of SEBI
Listing Regulation, 2015. Delay in filing was occurred due to the technical reason and stock exchange admitted
the submissions made by the company.

Neither the Stock Exchanges nor the Board or any other Statutory Authority has imposed penalties or strictures
on the Company, during the last three years, on any matter relating to capital markets.

c. Details of establishment of Vigil mechanism and Whistle Blower policy;

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy for Directors and employees to report
concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or
ethics policy.
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The Vigil Mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of Directors/ employees who blows
the whistle and to provide direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. No
employee is denied the opportunity to meet the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Other required details are duly provided in the Board’s Report of this Annual Report.
. Details of policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries;

The Board of Directors have formulated a policy for determining material subsidiary and the same is posted on
the website of the Company at http://www.balaxiventures.in/corporate_governance

. Related Party Transactions

The Board of Directors of the Company, as per the provisions of Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations, has
formulated a policy on Material Related Party Transactions. The said policy is available on the website of the
Company at http://www.balaxiventures.in/corporate_governance. The related party transactions entered
during the year under review are in the ordinary course of business and on arms’ length basis. Further, a
statement on all related party transactions is presented before the Audit Committee of the Company on quarterly
basis for its review.

Details of the related party transaction entered during the year is detailed in the notes to the financials and other
relevant details are provided in the Board’s Report.

. Details of utilization of funds:

The company raised INR. 18.09 Crores through Preferential Issued on August 27, 2019. The company has fully
utilised the entire amount during the period under review for working capital requirements and operational
expenditure. The Audit committee reviewed the utilisation of issue proceeds. There was no deviation in the fund
utilisation from the objectives as stated in the issue prospectus.

. Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the Listing Regulations, M/s. BVR &
Associates Practicing Company Secretaries LLP , Company Secretary in practice, Cochin, has certified that none
of the directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority
isattached as Annexure: II.

The company also obtained a compliance certificate from M/s. BVR & Associates Practicing Company Secretaries
LLP regarding compliance of conditions of corporate governance and the same is attached as Annexure: IX

Recommendation of Committees;

All recommendations / submissions made by various Committees of the Board during the financial year 2019-20
were accepted by the Board of the Company.

. Feestostatutory auditors

M/s. P Murali & Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 007257S) Hyderabad is the statutory auditors
of Company. None of the subsidiary companies have availed of any services from the Statutory Auditors of the
Company or any of its network firm/network entity during the financial year 2019-20. The Company had paid an
audit fees of INR. 5.00 Lakhs for the financial year 2019-20.

. Prevention of Sexual Harassment

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at its workplace and has adopted a Policy for
Prevention of Sexual Harassment in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 (‘POSH Act”) to provide a safe, secure and enabling environment,

Annual Report 2019-20 @



Balaxi (@

free from sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) as well as women who
visit the premises of the Company for any purpose are covered under this Policy. The Policy is gender neutral.

Particulars Complaints
No of Complaints filed during the Financial Year NIL
No of Complaints disposed of during the Financial Year NIL
No of Complaints pending as on the end of the Financial Year NIL

DISCLOSURE ON COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS;

The Company has complied with all the requirements of Corporate Governance mentioned in the Regulation 17 to 27 and
clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2)of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, wherever applicable.

The Company has complied with all the requirements of Corporate Governance Report as specified in sub paras (2) to (10)
of Schedule V(c) of the Listing Regulations.

DETAILS OF ADOPTION OF DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED IN PART E OF SCHEDULE II TO THE
LISTING REGULATIONS

The Company has adopted the following nonmandatory requirements of Part E of Schedule II to the Listing Regulations.
a. Unmodified Audit Report:

During the financial year under review, there was no audit qualification on the Company’s audited Standalone and
Consolidated Financial Statements and Results. The Company continues to adopt best practices to ensure regime
of unmodified financial statements.

b. Reporting of Internal auditor:
The Internal Auditor of the Company directly reports to the Audit Committee.
DETAILS OF OTHER COMPLIANCES

Details of compliances of provisions relating to Corporate Governance in various Regulations of the Listing Regulations,
other than those specified above are as under:

a. Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management;

The Board has put in place a Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management of the Company in line with
the provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations. The Code is available on the website of the Company
www.balaxiventures.in. in the page ‘Investor Relations’. The Declaration on this behalf is provided as Annexure:
VII

DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/ UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT;
a. Unclaimed/Undelivered shares

The Company did not have any outstanding equity shares lying in the demat suspense account/unclaimed
suspense account during the financial year 2019-20 and as on March 31, 2020. Further voting rights on none of
equity shares of the Company are frozen. Hence disclosure or reporting in terms of Regulation 34(3) read with
PartF of Schedule V to the SEBI Listing Regulations is not applicable/required.

b. Investors’ Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF”)

The details of unpaid and unclaimed Dividend of previous years which has been transferred or is due to be
transferred to the IEPF during the financial year 2019-20 in terms of the applicable provisions of the Act read
with the IEPF Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (‘IEPF Rules”), as amended from
time to time is provided in the Board's Report which forms part of this annual report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Management Discussion and Analysis for the financial year under review, as stipulated under Regulation 34(2)(e)
read with Part B of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations, is presented in a separate section and forms part of this
Annual Report. It provides mandatory disclosures required under the SEBI Listing Regulations comprising of inter-alia
details about the overall industry structure, economic scenarios, operational and financial performance of the Company,
business strategy, internal controls and their adequacy, risk management systems and other material developments
during the financial year 2019-20.

For and on behalf of Board,
Balaxi Ventures Limited

Ashish Maheshwari Minoshi Maheshwari
Place: Hyderabad Managing Director Director
Date: 17.08.2020 DIN: 01575984 DIN: 01575975
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I INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT STANDALONE I

To the Members of Balaxi Ventures Limited
Opinion

We have audited theaccompanying IND AS Standalone financial statements of Balaxi Ventures Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31stMarch 2020, the statement of Profit and Loss for the year then ended, and
Cash Flow Statement and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March
31,2020, and Profit for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Depending on the facts and circumstances of the entity and the Audit, there are no key audit matters to communicate in
the Audit Report.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these Ind AS standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance(including the other comprehensive income), cash flows and
Statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Relevant Rules issued
thereunder. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a goingconcern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless managementeither intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these Standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit Procedures that
is appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(I) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists; we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope
of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
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in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the order’) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A", a statement on the matters
specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books.

a) the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement
and the Statement of changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(c) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Relevant Rules issued there under.

(d) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2020 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2020 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(e) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”; and

(f) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

li. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

ili. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the company.

Yours faithfully,

for P Murali & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No.007257S

A. Krishna Rao

Partner

Membership No. 020085

UDIN : 20020085AAAAGC6358

Place: Hyderabad
Date: June 16, 2020
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Annexure A to the Auditor’s Report I

Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of Our Report of even date to the members of M/s. Balaxi Ventures Limited
on the accounts of the company for the year ended 31st March, 2020 Under “Report on other Legal & Regulatory
Requirements”

(L)

iii.

iv.

Vi.

Vii.

Viii.

ix.

(@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at regular intervals; as informed to us no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is
reasonable.

(c) As the Company does not have immovable properties holding of title, as this clause is not applicable to the
company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
company inventories have been physically verified at reasonable intervals of time and no material discrepancies
have been found.

The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, and Limited Liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Hence this clause is not applicable to the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any loans,
investments, guarantees and securities therefore section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and
investments do not apply.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act,2013 and
the rules framed there under.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Thus reporting under clause 3(vi) of
the order is not applicable to the Company.

(@) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the company examined
by us, the company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, Customs Duty and other material statutory dues, as
applicable.

(b) There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, , Employees’ State Insurance and
Income-tax other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31st March 2020 for a period of more than 6 months from
the date they became payable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the company examined
by us, there are no dues of Income Tax and any other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of
any disputes.

The Company has not borrowed any loans from bank or financial institutions. The company has not issued any
debentures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial
public offer or further public offer including debt instruments and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(ix) of the order are not applicable to the company.
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Xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

During the course of examination of books of accounts and records of the company, carried out in accordance with
the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to information and explanations given to us, we
have neither come across any instance of material fraud on or by the company, noticed or reported during the year,
nor have been informed of such cases by the management.

According to information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records of the company, the
Company has paid for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the company is not a Nidhi Company.
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are not applicable to the company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of section 177
and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone financial
statements as required under Indian Accounting standard (Ind AS) 24, related party disclosures specified under
section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued there under.

According to information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records of the company, the
company has made preferential allotment of shares in compliance with the sec 62 of the act and the amount raised
has been used for the purpose for which the funds were raised.

According to information and explanations given to us and to the best of our knowledge and belief the company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with the directors. Therefore, the
provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the order are not applicable to the company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of The Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the order are not applicable to the Company.

Yours faithfully,

for P Murali & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No.007257S

A. Krishna Rao

Partner

Membership No. 020085

UDIN : 20020085AAAAGC6358
Place: Hyderabad

Date: June 16, 2020
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Standalone Balance sheet as at 31°* March 2020 I

Rupees in Thousands

Particulars Notes 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 3] 1,865 113
Financial Assets
Investments - Subsidiary 4 978 -
Other non-current assets
Income tax assets 5 9,233 3,199
Total Non-Current Assets 12,076 3,312
Current Assets
Inventories 6 8,321 -
Financial Assets
Investments - -
Trade receivables 7 3,12,222 54,739
Cash and bank balances 8 35,667 1,330
Advances 9 10,764 1,697
Total Current Assets 3,66,974 57,766
Total Assets 3,79,050 61,078
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 10 1,00,000 30,400
Other equity 11 1,81,123 4,805
Total Equity 2,81,123 35,205
Non Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 12 34
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - -
Trade Payables 13 69,127 20,801
Other Financial Liabilities 14 4,636 369
Liabilities for Current Tax (net) 15 24,130 4,703
Total Liabilities 97,926 25,873
Total Equity and Liabilities 3,79,050 61,078
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For P Murali & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 007257S

A. Krishna Rao

Partner

Membership No. 020085

UDIN : 20020085AAAAGC6358

Place: Hyderabad
Date: June 16, 2020

For and behalf of the Board
Balaxi Ventures Limited

Ashish Maheshwari
Managing Director & CFO
DIN: 01575984

Nidhin Jose
Company Secretary

Minoshi Maheshwari
Director
DIN: 01575975
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I Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 31°* March 2020 I

Rupees in Thousands

Particulars Notes 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Revenue from Operations 16 4,56,324 1,35,954
Other Income 17 28,113 8,088
Total Income 4,84,438 1,44,042
Expenses
Cost of material consumed 18 3,35,767 1,02,369
Employee benefit expenses 19 17,621 9,012
Finance costs - -
Depreciation expense 20 75 35
Other expenses 21 38,318 8,233
Total Expenses 3,91,782 1,19,649
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 92,656 24,393
Tax Expense:-

Current Tax 22 27,664 4,734

Deferred Tax 22 34 -
Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operations - -
Profit/(Loss) for the year 64,958 19,659
Other comprehensive income - -
Total Comprehensive Income, Net of Tax 64,958 19,659
Earnings per Equity Share 23
Equity shares of par value Rs.10/- each
Number of Shares 100,00,000 30,40,000
Par value Rs.10 per share (Previous year: Rs.10 per share)
Basic 8.64 6.47
Diluted 8.64 6.47
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

For P Murali & Co.,

Chartered Accountants For and behalf of the Board

Firm Registration No. 007257S Balaxi Ventures Limited

A. Krishna Rao Ashish Maheshwari Minoshi Maheshwari
Partner Managing Director & CFO Director

Membership No. 020085 DIN: 01575984 DIN: 01575975

UDIN : 20020085AAAAGC6358

Place: Hyderabad Nidhin Jose
Date: June 16, 2020 Company Secretary
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I Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31* March 2020 I

Rupees in Thousands

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities:

Net profit before tax 92,656 24,393

Add/ (Less): Adjustments to reconcile profit

before tax to net cash flows:

Depreciation for the year 75 35

Loss on sale of fixed assets 11

Dividend Income

Finance cost

Net Loss / (Gain) on financial assets measured at

fair value through profit or loss

Operating profit before working capital changes 92,731 24,439

Movements in working capital

Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables 48,326 19,857

Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial liabilities 4,267 61

Decrease / (Increase) in other bank balance 94 6

Decrease / (Increase) in advance (9,067) (1,697)

Decrease / (Increase) in other receivables (6,034) (2,898)

Decrease / (Increase) in trade receivables (2,57,483) (54,739)

Decrease / (Increase) in Inventory (8,321) -

Cash Generated from Operations (2,28,217) (39,409)

Direct taxes paid (Net of refunds) (8,237) (100)

Net Cash from Operating Activities (A) (1,43,724) (15,070)
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities:

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (1,827) (54)

Dividends received

Interest received

Investment in Subsidiary (978)

Net Cash from / (used in) Investing Activities (B) (2,805) (54)
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities:

Repayment of borrowings

Interest on borrowings

Further Issue of Equity Share Capital incl. Premium 1,80,960

Net Cash from / (used in) Financing Activities (C) 1,80,960 0
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Rupees in Thousands

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
D. Net (Decrease)/ Increase in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C] 34,431 -15,124
E. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,028 16,152
F. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year [D+E] 35,460 1,028
G. Other Bank Balances
Unencashed Dividend in bank accounts 207 302
H. Total Cash and Bank Balances [F+H] 35,667 1,330

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

For P Murali & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 007257S

A. Krishna Rao

Partner

Membership No. 020085

UDIN : 20020085AAAAGC6358

Place: Hyderabad
Date: June 16, 2020

For and behalf of the Board
Balaxi Ventures Limited

Ashish Maheshwari
Managing Director & CFO
DIN: 01575984

Nidhin Jose
Company Secretary

Minoshi Maheshwari
Director
DIN: 01575975
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31* March 2020

1.1  Corporate Information

"Balaxi Ventures Limited ('the Company') is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India whose
shares are publicly traded. The registered office is located at Plot no.409, H.No. 82-293, Maps Towers, 3" Floor,
Phase III, Road No: 81, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad, Telangana, India. The Company was incorporated in September,
1942. The Company Commenced the business of International Wholesale Trading of Pharmaceuticals, Builders
Hardware and FMCG products during the Financial Year 2018-19. The Financial Statements were authorized
for issue by the board of directors on June 16, 2020."

1.2 Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for Certain financial assets
measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) and all values are rounded to the nearest
Thousands, except when otherwise indicated.

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
a. Current Versus Non-Current Classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An
asset is treated as current whenit is:

» Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
* Held primarily for the purpose of trading
» Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
Aliability is current when:

* [tisexpected to be settled in normal operating cycle

Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b. Fair Value Measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
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* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
* Intheabsence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

 Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

* Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
isdirectly or indirectly observable

» Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
isunobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external
sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and
excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The specific recognition criteria described below
must be met before revenue is recognised:

Dividends

Revenue is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when
shareholders approve the dividend.
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d. Taxes
Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable
income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is recognised outside the
statement of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised
in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

* When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss

* In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

* When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

* In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is recognised outside the
statement of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.
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Plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), property, plant and equipment were carried in the balance sheet on the
basis of historical cost less accumulated depreciation (carrying value). The Company has elected to regard the
previous GAAP carrying value as deemed cost at the transition date, viz., 1 April 2016.

Depreciation is calculated on written down value basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Asset Block Useful Life (Years)
Furniture & Fixtures 10
Computer 3

Office Equipments 5

The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the
period over which the assets are likely to be used. The estimated useful lives are in line with those prescribed by
Sch1I'to Companies Act, 2013.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Impairment of PPE

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/ external factors. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

After recognition of impairment loss, the depreciation charge for the asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate
the assets revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on straight line basis over its remaining useful
life.

A previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reversed depending on changes in circumstances.
However, the carrying value after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying value that would have prevailed
by charging usual depreciation if there was no impairment.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent Measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified as Equity instruments at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL).
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All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments included within the
FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

ii) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement and
either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset

Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings or payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings.

Subsequent Measurement

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
wellas through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that

are anintegral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.
8. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with

an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's
cash management.

h. Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity
shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends
relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share
split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares
outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of

i. Borrowing Costs

funds. Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

- Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some
or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually cert